MINUTES Of the Regular Meeting, of The Claiborne Parish Police Jury 10:00 a.m. June 7, 2023 Police Jury Chambers 507 West Main Street Homer, LA 71040

The Claiborne Parish Police Jury met in regular session in the Jury Chambers of the Claiborne Parish Police Jury Complex, located at 507 West Main Street in Homer, LA at 10:00 a.m. on the 7th of June 2023. On being called to order by President, Scott Davidson, the following jurors were present:

James Laird, Mark Furlow, Kevin Gray, Mary McDaniel, Paul Cook, Joseph Merritt, Jr., Tommy Sanders, Gil Dowies, and Rev. Willie Young, Sr.

There were 18 others in attendance which included Secretary-Treasurer Dwayne R. Woodard, Interim Parish Co-Road Superintendents Chad Verdin and Brant Cupp, Sheriff Sam Dowies, OOCS Executive Director April Childress, Claiborne Parish Director of Libraries Pam Suggs, Claiborne Parish Library Historian Wesley Harris, Parish Coroner Dr. Mark Haynes, CPPJ Digital Navigator Mr. Jerry Hillidge, Main Street and TOH Council Member Jimmy Hand, Mr. David Greene of Republic Services, Haynesville Mayor Roderick Hampton, Mr. Mark and Mrs. Wesley Johnson of E&P Consulting Services of Monroe, Mrs. Jackie Roberts of the Guardian Journal, Ms. Paige Nash of the Claiborne Parish Journal, Mrs. Heather Durrett, and Mr. Jerry Whitton of Homer.

There was a Public Hearing on Proposed Ordinance No. 796 at 9:00 a.m. in the Conference Room.

There was a Road Committee Meeting held at 9:10 a.m. in the Conference Room.

President Scott Davidson called the meeting to order.

The meeting was opened with a word of Prayer led Rev. Willie Young, Sr., followed by the Pledge of Allegiance led by Paul Cook.

Upon motion by Joe Merritt, duly seconded by Mark Furlow, the Jury unanimously voted to adopt the Regular Agenda as presented.

Upon motion by Tommy Sanders, duly seconded by Mary McDaniel, the Jury unanimously voted to amend the regular agenda to include the following items:

- 1. Request from the Village of Athens, in a letter dated June 2, 2023, requesting the Police Jury's assistance in replacing culverts on Baker Lane and Horseshoe Lane. The work will be done under the village's ad valorem tax credit.
- 2. Request from Claiborne Parish Fire District #4, in a letter received June 5, 2023, requesting the Police Jury's assistance in repairing driveway access to a dry hydrant located at Hollenshead Pond on Hollenshead Road and La Hwy 534.
- 3. Consideration of placing "NO OVERNIGHT CAMPING SIGNS" at the public launches located at the Lisbon Landing on Hwy 2, Arizona Landing off Hwy 146, and the Spillway Parking Lot off Hwy 518 behind the dam.
- 4. Request from Secretary-Treasurer Woodard for the Police Jury to enter into an MOU with E & P Consulting Services for matters concerning the advertising, sale and deposition of the Parish's adjudicated properties.
- 5. Resolution 23-011 on the sale of the parish owned property (Old Armory Garage) located on Lyons Hill Rd.

Upon motion by Gil Dowies, duly seconded by Mary McDaniel, the Jury unanimously approved the following consent agenda except for Item #3 which at the request of District Eight Juror Tommy Sanders was moved to the beginning of the regular agenda.

Consent Agenda

- 1. Approval of the May 10, 2023, regular meeting minutes.
- 2. Payment of the May 2023 bills as approved by the Claims Committee.

President Scott Davidson requested that the Jury act upon the addition to the regular agenda at this time.

Upon motion by Paul Cook, duly seconded by James Laird, the Jury unanimously approved the request from the Village of Athens, in a letter dated June 2, 2023, requesting the Police Jury's assistance in replacing culverts on Baker Lane and Horseshoe Lane. The work will be done under the village's ad valorem tax credit.

Upon motion by Gil Dowies, duly seconded by Tommy Sanders, the Jury unanimously approved the request from the Claiborne Parish Fire District #4, in letter received June 5, 2023, requesting the Police Jury's assistance in repairing driveway access to a dry hydrant located at Hollenshead Pond on Hollenshead Road on Hwy 534.

Upon motion by Gil Dowies, duly seconded by Rev. Willie Young, the Jury unanimously approved placing "NO OVERNIGHT CAMPING SIGNS" at the public boat launches located at the Lisbon Landing on Hwy 2, Arizona Landing off of Hwy 146 and the spillway parking lot located off of Hwy 518 behind the dam.

Upon motion by Mark Furlow, duly seconded by Mary McDaniel, the Jury unanimously approved the request from Secretary-Treasurer Woodard for the Police Jury to enter into an MOU with E & P Consulting Services for matters concerning the advertisement, sale and disposition of the Parish's adjudicated properties.

Upon motion by Kevin Gray, duly seconded by Paul Cook, the Jury unanimously approved Resolution 2023 – 011 – A Resolution Authorizing The President and Secretary-Treasurer To Sign Documents Concerning the Sale/Disposition of 753 Lyons Hill Road, Lot No. Six (6)

RESOLUTION 2023-011

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PRESIDENT AND SECRETARY-TREASURER TO SIGN DOCUMENTS ON BEHALF OF CLAIBORNE PARISH CONCERNING THE SALE/DISPOSTION OF 753 LYONS HILL ROAD, LOT NO. SIX (6) OF BLOCK C OF THE TOWN OF HOMER (OLD ARMOURY GARAGE)

WHEREAS, the Claiborne Parish Police Jury has declared 753 Lyons Hill Road, Homer LA, to be surplus and has advertised and received sealed bids with the highest qualified being \$20,100.00 from John T. Tinsley, DVM of Homer, LA;

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that the Claiborne Parish Police Jury AUTHRORIZES the President, Scott Davidson and/or Secretary-Treasurer, Dwayne R. Woodard, to sign and execute any and all documents on behalf of the Claiborne Parish Police Jury relating to the sale/disposition of the said property to John T. Tinsley.

Upon a motion by Kevin Gray and duly seconded by Paul Cook this motion was carried and officially adopted by the Claiborne Parish Police Jury meeting in regular session convened on Wednesday, June 7, 2023.

Yeas – (10) Laird, Furlow, Gray, McDaniel, Cook, Davidson, Merritt, Sanders, Dowies, and Young

Nays – (0) None

Abstain – N/A

Absent – (0) None

<u>/s/Dwayne R. Woodard</u> Secretary-Treasurer <u>/s/Scott Davidson</u> President

Regular Agenda

Upon motion by Tommy Sanders, duly seconded by Gil Dowies, the Jury unanimously voted to increase the yearly support for the Fireworks for Lake Claiborne amount from \$500 to \$1,000 due to the economic impact and tourism this annual event brings to Lake Claiborne and Claiborne Parish.

President Scott Davidson reminded everyone that all Parish Employees are required to complete one (1) hour of ethics training by December 31, 2023.

President Scott Davidson also reminded everyone that one (1) hour of Preventing Sexual Harassment training is required to be completed by December 31, 2023, by all parish employees – Department Heads and Jury Officers have a two (2) hour training requirement.

President Scott Davidson reminded the Jury of the date for the Regular Police Jury Meeting will be held on July 12, 2023, at 10:00 a.m. due to the Fourth of July Holiday.

Upon motion by Kevin Gray, duly seconded by Tommy Sanders, the Jury unanimously approved the request from Secretary-Treasurer Dwayne R. Woodard to re-appoint The Guardian Journal as the Official Journal of the Claiborne Parish Police Jury for the Period July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024, since it is the only qualifying weekly publication in operation in the Parish and the only publication that meets the requirements as defined by La R.S. 43:140 and La R.S. 43:174.

Upon motion by Kevin Gray, duly seconded by Mary McDaniel, the Jury unanimously adopted Resolution 2023-010 – A Resolution Authorizing the President and Secretary-Treasurer to Sign Documents on Behalf of the Claiborne Parish Police Jury Concerning the Transmittal of the 2022 Audited Financial Statements and the 2022 AUPs.

RESOLUTION 2023-010

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PRESIDENT AND SECRETARY-TREASURER TO SIGN DOCUMENTS ON BEHALF OF CLAIBORNE PARISH CONCERNING THE TRANSMITTAL OF THE 2022 AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUPs

WHEREAS, the deadline for the transmittal of the audited financial statements of Claiborne Parish is June 30, 2023; and

WHEREAS, the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Claiborne Parish Police Jury is scheduled for July 12, 2023; and

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that the Claiborne Parish Police Jury AUTHRORIZES the President, Scott Davidson and Secretary-Treasurer, Dwayne R. Woodard, to sign and execute documents on behalf of the Claiborne Parish Police Jury relating to the transmittal of the Parish's 2022 audited financial statements and AUPs.

Upon a motion by Kevin Gray and duly seconded by Mary McDaniel this motion was carried and officially adopted by the Claiborne Parish Police Jury meeting in regular session convened on Wednesday, June 7, 2023.

Yeas – (10) Laird, Furlow, Gray, McDaniel, Cook, Davidson, Merritt, Sanders, Dowies, and Young

Nays – (0) None

Abstain – N/A

Absent -(0) None

<u>/s/Dwayne R. Woodard</u> Secretary-Treasurer <u>/s/Scott Davidson</u> President

President Scott Davidson read aloud a notice that Claiborne Parish Fire Protection District #6 per letter dated May 12, 2023, the board members unanimously approved Scott Shakelford as President at their meeting on May 11, 2023.

President Scott Davidson read aloud a letter from DOTD, received May 12, 2023 that DOTD has agreed to install "School Bus Stop Ahead" signs for the bus stop located at the intersection of LA 540 and Tims Lane. This request was submitted by District Eight Juror Tommy Sanders.

Upon motion by Kevin Gray, duly seconded by Mark Furlow, the Jury unanimously awarded the duly advertised, highest qualified bid of the surplus parcel #8730000600C located at 753 Lyons Hill Rd, Homer, LA 71040 to Dr. John Tinsley of Homer, in the amount of \$20,100.

Upon motion by Gil Dowies, duly seconded by Paul Cook, the Jury unanimously adopted, by show of hands, Ordinance No. 796 – An Ordinance to Provide for the Sale of Adjudicated Properties; and, Further Providing with Respect Thereto...

Gil Dowies, seconded by Paul Cook offered the following ordinance for adoption.

ORDINANCE NO. 796

AN ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE FOR SALE OF ADJUDICATED PROPERTIES; AND, FURTHER PROVIDING WITH RESPECT THERETO.

WHEREAS, the Parish of Claiborne has an interest in the health, safety and welfare of its citizens; and

WHEREAS, numerous properties have been adjudicated to the Parish for nonpayment of taxes; and

WHEREAS, Act 819 was enacted by the 2008 Legislative Session, revising La. R.S. 47:2121, *et seq.* to establish procedures for the sale of adjudicated properties, and the Parish of Claiborne desires to establish and adopt such procedures in order to place such adjudicated properties back into the economic stream of commerce for the benefit of its communities; and

WHEREAS, R.S.47:2201, authorizes a political subdivision to adopt general ordinances governing the public sales and donations of adjudicated property.

NOW THEREFORE:

I. ADMINISTRATION

Claiborne Parish Police Jury hereby establishes the Claiborne Parish Adjudicated Property Program, which shall be administered by the Claiborne Parish Police Jury (hereinafter "CPPJ" or "Parish" or "Police Jury"). The Parish shall either handle the process internally or shall contract with a third-party administrator or management company (hereinafter "Management Company") to administer the sale or donation of adjudicated properties in the Parish.

The PPPJ hereby authorizes, pursuant to La. R.S.47:2196, the public sale of all properties adjudicated to the Parish since January 1, 1975, and for a period of at least three (3) years. The sale of said properties shall be governed by the laws of the State of Louisiana and this Ordinance.

II. PUBLIC INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURE

Forms and instructions shall be accessible to the public from the web site or printed publication produced and provided by Claiborne Parish for such purposes, to include the following:

- A. Listing of all properties adjudicated to the Parish with links to the Parish Assessor's online database, if possible.
- B. Notice to Buyers, which shall contain instructions, disclosure of rights, and contact information.
- C. Persons questioning the status of their property taxes shall be instructed to contact the Parish Tax Collector's office.
- **D.** Copy of Parish Ordinance regulating policies and procedures for sale of adjudicated properties.
- E. Definitions and citation to Louisiana Revised Statutes.
- F. Offer to Purchase Form with instructions for completion and assistance.

III. PRE-BIDDING PROCESS

A. <u>Initiation of Sale</u>

The Parish Assessor shall make best efforts to annually compile a list of names and addresses of adjudicated properties from the tax roll records and make such list available to the public. The Parish Assessor shall also forward such a list to the Management Company.

Pursuant to La. R.S 2203, the sale of such adjudicated property may be prompted by individual interest (whether it be a natural person or juridical person) or at the request of the Parish or Police Jury, at any time.

An individual submitting a request for the sale of specific property shall submit an application with a certified check or money order in the amount of \$1,000.00 for each piece of property, payable to *E&P Consulting Services, LLC*. This fee is an administrative fee for the work performed by the Management Company to prepare and sell the identified adjudicated property. It shall be fully refundable to the interested purchaser until a Written Offer to Bid has been signed.

Upon receipt of application and fee, the Management Company shall conduct a preliminary investigation to confirm that the property has been adjudicated, has not been redeemed and has not been determined as needed for a public purpose. The Management Company shall communicate as necessary with the office of the tax collector and tax assessor for the purpose of calculating the Minimum Bid (set forth in (3) below) and shall prepare and provide the interested purchaser with a written Offer to Bid containing the minimum bid figure. In the event that the interested Purchaser rejects the minimum bid offer, he/she shall receive a full refund of the administrative fee.

If the written minimum bid offer is accepted, the Management Company shall:

1. <u>Conduct Title Research</u> - Title research shall include copies of all documents from the public record. If necessary, surrounding properties may be researched to ascertain the physical location and boundaries of subject properties. Management Company shall utilize abstracting services of insured abstractors at its discretion. Said title search shall include tax certificates obtained from the Claiborne Parish Tax Collector, mortgage certificates obtained from Claiborne Clerk of Court, and any records obtained from Parish

Assessor's office. Copies of surveys and maps of record may also be provided.

- 2. <u>Effect Public Notice</u> The public sale by auction shall be advertised at least twice in the official journal for the Parish of Claiborne once at least thirty days prior to the date of the public sale, and once no more than seven days prior to the date of the public sale. The notice shall provide for the minimum bid, the latest date written bids will be accepted, the time and date of in-person bidding, if any, and any other terms of sale.
- 3. <u>Other Administration and Determination of Minimum Bid Amount</u> The Management Company shall prepare reports, send statutory notices to all interested parties, and confirm the minimum bid price, based upon total amount of liens and taxes due, and acquisition costs. Pursuant La. R.S. 47:2202, Claiborne Parish hereby establishes that there is no minimum bid at the public sale of an adjudicated property; however, unless circumstances demand otherwise, recommended bidding to ensure equivalent value shall not be less than the lesser of:
 - a) The total amount for which the property was adjudicated, including all interest, costs, penalties, and the amount of any state, parish, city, levee district charges and all subsequent taxes and other local improvement or code enforcement charges or
 - b) Two-thirds of the assessed value.

IV. BIDDING AND PUBLIC SALE

Except as otherwise provided in this ordinance, or by La. R.S. 47:2121 *et seq.*, the auction shall be governed by R.S. 9:3151 *et seq.* Following notice of sale being published in the official journal of the Parish of Claiborne, the following shall occur:

A. <u>Public Auction</u>

The public auction of adjudicated property shall be held at the Claiborne Parish Police Jury office located at 507 West Main Street, Homer, LA 71040 and shall be handled by the office of Parish Secretary/Treasurer. All bid amounts are subject to final approval by the Parish. The Parish is hereby authorized to accept and/or reject any or all bids, and to execute any and all documents necessary to finalize the sale of properties sold pursuant to these procedures. If in any event a property is not sold at such public auction, the property shall remain adjudicated to the Parish.

B. <u>Terms for Sale of Adjudicated Property</u>

All Acts of Sale of adjudicated property shall contain provisions, acceptable in form and substance to the Parish, which provide that all such sales shall be for cash and shall be without warranty of title and without any warranty of merchantability or fitness; shall be "as is, where is"; that it shall be the obligation of the purchaser to obtain title insurance, if it is desired; that all such sales shall be subject to such encumbrances, liens, mortgages, real charges or other burdens reflected in the public records; and that the Act of Sale for such adjudicated property shall contain a condition which shall require the purchaser of such property to improve/renovate/make use of the tract, to the satisfaction of the administration, within 365 days of the passage of the Act of Sale and that, if the purchaser fails to timely comply with this provision, the Parish Jury shall have the right to rescind, dissolve or cancel the sale.

C. <u>Notice to Tax Debtor and Tax Parties</u>

(a) The Management Company, on behalf of the Parish for the benefit of the potential purchaser, shall give notice to any tax sale party whose interest that a prudent purchaser would intend to terminate, as determined by the Management Company, in its discretion, that he has until the later of the following to redeem the property or otherwise challenge in a court of competent jurisdiction the potential sale: (i) depending on the date of adjudication, either six months or the sixty days from the date of the notice provided in this Subsection; or (ii) the

filing of the act of sale transferring the property.

(b) The Management Company, on behalf of the Parish for the benefit of the potential purchaser, shall cause to be published in the official journal of Claiborne Parish a notice that any tax sale party whose interest that a prudent purchaser would intend to terminate has until the later of the following to redeem the property or otherwise challenge in a court of competent jurisdiction, the potential sale of the property: (i) Sixty (60) days or six (6) months from the first publication of the notice provided for in this Subsection; or (ii) The filing of the sale or donation transferring the property.

(c) The Management Company shall make available during business hours to any potential bidder, upon reasonable request, the notices, the publication and the results of such notification and publication.

(d) The Management Company on behalf of the Parish for the benefit of the potential purchaser or the successful bidder may file with the recorder of mortgages of Claiborne Parish a copy of one of the notices that was sent to the tax debtor or the current owner. A transfer, mortgage, lien, privilege, or other encumbrance filed after the filing of the notice shall not affect the property. Pursuant to the provisions of La. R.S. 47:2206(C), the recorder of mortgages or recorder of conveyances shall cancel, erase, terminate, or release the acts upon the request of the Management Company or the successful bidder.

D. <u>Closing Transaction</u>

Within 10 business days of the six (6) month or the sixty (60) day period set forth in the notices provided above, closing of the transactions should occur. Such date may be extended by mutual agreement of the Management Company, acting on behalf of the Parish, and the potential purchaser or based on the Management Company determination that the closing should occur at a later date in the best interest of the Police Jury. On the day of closing, and immediately prior to closing, the Management Company will confirm that the property to be purchased has not been redeemed.

Closings shall be conducted or overseen or arranged by the Management Company to be held at the offices of Management Company or at the Claiborne Parish Police Jury Office. However, purchaser may execute the documents at a more agreeable location, at purchaser's expense.

At closing, the purchaser shall pay the net purchase price for the property as well as all fees to be charged by the Clerk of Court.

All sales are made without warranties whatsoever, except for warranty against eviction based on prior alienation by the political subdivision. The purchaser has the right to obtain title insurance, if available, at its sole cost and expense. All minerals and mineral rights shall be reserved by the Parish, if allowed by law. Cash Sales may contain additional reservations, requirements, restrictions, rights of way, and servitudes imposed by the Parish.

Upon recordation of the sale, disbursement of funds shall occur by Management Company to the Parish Tax Collector with instructions from the Parish Tax Collector. All proceeds after the deduction of costs shall be paid pro rata to holders of statutory impositions and governmental liens, unless otherwise agreed. Any excess amount shall be paid to the Parish or shall be dispersed as determined appropriate by the mutual agreement of the governmental entities.

E. Purchaser's Affidavit

1) Contemporaneously with or subsequent to the filing of the sale or donation of adjudicated property, the acquiring person, his successors, or assigns, at his own additional expense may file with the recorder of mortgages of Claiborne Parish indicating how the tax sale parties whose interest the acquiring person, his successors, or assigns, intends to be terminated were identified, how the address of each tax sale party was obtained, how the written notice was sent, the results of sending the written notice, and the dates of

publication. The affidavit may also contain a statement of the interest to which the purchaser or done takes subject. The recorder of mortgages shall index the affidavit only under the names of the owner filing the affidavit and the tax debtor, as mortgagors. The affidavit shall conform to La. R.S. 47:2208(A).

2) With respect to a sale, the filing of the affidavit provided in Subsection (1) of this Section shall operate as a cancellation, termination, release, or erasure of record of all statutory impositions of all political subdivisions then due and owing, of all governmental liens, and of all interests, liens, mortgages, privileges, and other encumbrances recorded against the property sold and listed in the affidavit.

3) Upon filing of the affidavit, the recorder of mortgages or the recorder of conveyances shall treat as canceled, terminated, released, or erased, all those liens, privileges, mortgages or other encumbrances canceled, terminated, released or erased under Subsection (2) of this Section, only insofar as they affect the property.

4) Purchaser shall be responsible for recording and paying any other recording fees, including, without limitation, fees for recording any affidavits.

V. LOT NEXT DOOR PROGRAM

Claiborne Parish Police Jury hereby further authorizes the Parish to sell any eligible adjudicated property to any adjoining landowner for any price set by the Parish without public bidding. In the event that there is more than one adjoining landowner interested in purchasing the property, preference will be given to the landowner that establishes that he or she has maintained the adjudicated property for a period of one year prior to the sale. In the event that more than one adjoining landowner has maintained the property for a period of more than one year, the landowner whose adjoining property has homestead exemption status shall be given the first opportunity to acquire the eligible adjudicated property. Such a sale shall be deemed a public sale, pursuant to La R.S. 47:2202(B). Additionally, in situations involving a property with percentages of the tax bill being taxed to different individual(s)/entity(ies) because of a past tax sale can be considered a Lot Next Door Owner if the adjudication sale will result in a larger percentage of the property being taxed to one owner for the future.

VII.

DONATION OF PROPERTY

The Claiborne Parish Police Jury hereby further authorizes the Parish, to the extent allowed by the Louisiana Constitution, to donate any eligible adjudicated property to be used only for purposes allowed by the Louisiana Constitution.

VIII.

SEVER ABILI TY

If any provision contained in this ordinance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions which can be given effect without the invalid provision, and to this end, the provisions established herein are declared severable.

This ordinance becomes effective in accordance with dates set forth herein and five (5) days after publication in the Official Journal.

The above ordinance was introduced on the meeting of May 10, 2023.

The ordinance was submitted to a roll call vote, and the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: (10) - Laird, Furlow, Gray, McDaniel, Davidson, Cook, Merritt, Sanders, Dowies, and Young NAYS: (0) ABSTAIN: N/A

ABSENT: (0)

The ordinance was adopted on this 7th day of June 2023.

* * * * CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of Ordinance No. 796 adopted at a Regular Meeting of the Claiborne Parish Police Jury held on June 7, 2023, in which a quorum was present and voting and that the ordinance adopted is still in effect and has not been rescinded or revoked.

Signed at Homer, Louisiana on the 16th of June 2023

/s/Dwayne R. Woodard Secretary-Treasurer

At this time, Personnel Chair Mark Furlow presented the recommendations from the Personnel Committee.

Upon motion by Mark Furlow, duly seconded by Joseph Merritt, the Jury unanimously approved, upon recommendation from the Personnel Committee, to appoint Mr. Brant Cupp and Mr. Chad Verdin to the position of Co-Road Superintendent.

Upon motion by Mark Furlow, duly seconded by Gil Dowies, the Jury unanimously approved, upon recommendation from the Personnel Committee, setting Mr. Cupp's and Mr. Verdin's salary at \$70,000 annually (each) as Co-Road Superintendents for the Hwy Department. Both will be salaried (exempt) employees. This will become effective with the payroll period beginning on June 8, 2023.

Upon motion by Mark Furlow, duly seconded by Paul Cook, the Jury unanimously approved, upon recommendation from the Personnel Committee, to post "in house" the open position of Road Foreman for the period Thursday, June 8th till Friday June 23rd.

Upon motion by Mark Furlow, duly seconded by Mary McDaniel, the Jury unanimously approved, upon recommendation from the Personnel Committee, creating the position of Assistant Road Foreman within the Claiborne Parish Hwy Department. This will be a working position.

Upon motion by Mark Furlow, duly seconded by Kevin Gray, the Jury unanimously approved, upon recommendation from the Personnel Committee, reimbursing an employee 100% of the cost for obtaining a CDL Class A certification upon completion of the certification. In return, the employee will agree to a term of employment for a 24-month period upon completion of the certification and if the employee breaks that agreement, they will owe the entire cost of certification back to the Jury.

Upon motion by Mark Furlow, duly seconded by Mary McDaniel, the Jury unanimously approved, upon recommendation from the Personnel Committee, to extend the application period for the current open position of Truck Driver and to amend the starting pay rate to reflect DOE (Depending on Experience).

At this time, President Scott Davidson presented the recommendations from the Road Committee.

Upon motion by Kevin Gray, duly seconded by Mark Furlow, the Jury unanimously approved, upon recommendation from the Road Committee, to allow the Town of Homer first choice to purchase the surplus mini-track hoe in the amount of \$21,500. The Town will have until June

15th to pay for the piece of equipment. If payment is not made by the 15th, the Town of Haynesville will have the opportunity to purchase the track hoe for the same amount.

Upon motion by Kevin Gray, duly seconded by James Laird, the Jury unanimously approved, upon recommendation from the Road Committee, to obtain quotes for the of spraying of certain Parish roadways (minimum of 100 miles). This is subject to approval by the Road Committee of the method and the chemicals used.

Upon motion by Kevin Gray, duly seconded by Gil Dowies, the Jury approved by a vote of nine (9) FOR and one (1 - Young) being AGAINST the recommendation from the Road Committee, to allow E & P Consulting to list the Parish owned storage building located at East 2nd St. until October 1, 2023. If the building is not sold within that time, it will be torn down, and the space made into a parking lot.

Parish Coroner Dr. Mark Haynes gave his monthly report for the Coroner's Office. In May there were 9 deaths: (5) CMMC, (0) other, (2) Hospice/ER, (1) for autopsy on scene, (1) on scene no autopsy, and (0) CECs.

Dr. Mark Haynes gave a brief update on the current illnesses being seen at his clinic and the hospital. The hospital census is at full capacity, at this time. There are no flu cases. Covid is sporadic, with mild symptoms, with no one being admitted to the hospital for Covid.

ITEM #22 – June 7, 2023 – AGENDA

SECRETARY-TREASURER – UPDATE ON GRANTS AND OTHER ITEMS

1. LGAP Projects -

No open grant contracts at this time.

2. CWEF Projects -

Pinehill Water System FY2020-2021 CWEF Grant Amount - \$21,225 Project – Water line extension E D White Road area Status – Contract signed and approved by State.

3. LCDBG Grant

Norton Shop Water System FY2021 LCDBG Amount - \$455,480 Project – New water well Status – Under construction (100% complete).

- 4. Sales Tax Collections for April 2023 net of \$56,870 from gross collections of \$58,329 Net sales tax collections for March 2023 \$111,213 decrease \$-54,343 (-48.86%) Net sales tax collections for April 2022 \$60,797 decrease \$-3,927 (-6.46%)
- 5. Cash position on May 31, 2023 \$10,764,672
 Cash position on April 30, 2023 \$11,012,478 (decrease of \$-247,806)
 Cash position on May 31, 2022 \$10,415,839 (increase of \$348,833)

See Deposit Balances by Institution for breakdown on May 31, 2023 -

- 6. Total Receipts for the month of May 2023 \$211,598
- 7. Upcoming important dates and meetings –

6/13 – Meeting with Mr. Coco
6/19 – Juneteenth Holiday observed
6/22 - CPHSD #3 Board
6/22 - CPWSD
7/4 – July 4th Holiday observed
7/10 – Tentative date for committee meetings if needed
7/12 - July Regular Meeting

Additional Public Comments:

There were no additional public comments.

Upon motion by Kevin Gray, duly seconded by James Laird, the meeting was adjourned.

Dwayne R. Woodard Secretary–Treasurer Scott Davidson President